Gulf of the Purple Engima

by

Vernon Frazer

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

A number of the poems in this collection first appeared in A Clockwise Cat, Alien Buddha, Altered Scale, Barzakh, Brave New Word, C22 Zine, Gas, Lothlorien Poetry Journal, Moss Trill, On Barcelona, Otoliths, Plain Brown Wrapper, Rasputin, Synchronized Chaos, Typo, Unlikely Stories, Word For Word

© 2022 Vernon Frazer

All Rights Reserved

CONTENTS

Grand Opening	1
The Man in Charge	3
Playing Connected	5
Cooking Up a Recipe	6
Road Tripped	7
A Roadside Distraction	9
Touring the Side Life	11
Stuck in Human Trafficking	12
Futures Pitched	14
The Crossing Line	17
Reception at the Coastal Remnant	19
Flavoring the Day	21
Cradling Too Grave	22
Mirroring the Current Reflection	24
Corval Illumination	25
Feeding One Spirit	26
Marching Back the Clock	27
Opening the Night	29
Career Change of the Ancient Mariner	31
Return of the Wild Ones	32
Invasion Forcing	34
Guerilla Tactic	36
At the Debutante Bawl	37
Libidinal Ticketing	38
Inside the Rubble Room	40
Hosting from the Audience	42
Social Standing	43
Achievement Crowning	45
Fiddling the Empire	46
Temptation Deadbeats	48

Gulf of the Purple Enigma	49
Under Watch in the Skillet	51
Swine for Dinner	52
On Epstein's Island	53
Team Worked	54
Journey through the Keys	57
Delivering the Guarded Answers	58
No Room at the in	61
Back in the Back Alley Again	62
Socially Transmitted Unease	63
Gone Psychic	65
Beholding the Spin of the Beholder	66
Strobing the Nostalgia Light	68
Nodding a Then to the Now	69
Darkening the Storm	71
Payback in the Works	73
Orchestra Strike	75
The New Traditionalists	78
Driven Home by the Concert	79
Spark of Desire Gone South	81
Donne and Gone	82
The End of an Affair Revived	83
Fixing a Borrowed Habit	85
Getting Smugged	86
Viewing Widely	87
Ending Melody	88
At the End of the End of Days	89
After Closing Time	90
Ending at the Beginning	92
Keeping a Chance Last	95

Grand Opening

server transparency prides a shuffle rumored oblong

skillet failure diversions refute trellis gender octagons

rumors inspector looming unseals radar slush cans

ricochet pollution

panelist dockets chart antipathy, reprint

soil lacquers

when lachrymose probationers medicate boldly

()

hard awareness rash seeding used enormities headlights follow-on crazes

an actuarial burp cartel

calling the whether pollution

indeterminate vertebra

server beyond sample lends their blip dockets

gabardine turned relaxation

the headlines rush the pronouncements

wrapper gadget technologies

()

breath flutter crazes innocent follow-up starved a nun for suburban panegyric prides the abdominal tablespoon misdeals

the tragic reconciliation

refutes a server vertebra

The Man in Charge

the demeanor of a swollen dignity grater swaggers its velcro epithet

> bowed strut legs past

lines casting them a meaner present

swollen with sir names stolen from the cheese block scraping menace

dead tomato parmesan

its funeral for dessert

*

springs to life as winter's goldwave

rakes off the prophets

cash first and only

borrowed wisdom pertains

to the heart-shredding rite

on the night of the holy sun

death by unclocked solstice

*

seasons of darkness borrowed forever on credit taken not paid

the Aztec altar stained with a glut of the given

to prevent further disaster from ever faster naming of victims

all taken

in stride

and strut

Playing Connected

iodine sherbet catheters turn snake in the floor

slither

ambiguous

leather

for toxic willow pageants cascade merchants align

cranking out their crude ultimatum

packets to launch the proverbial as a *je ne sais quo*

no empty threat though drained

before hands clank their scrotal buzzer

tanking a conniption fit medium large or pick an X a carefree wallow

muffles their insurgent pipeline banter

Cooking Up a Recipe

the best blend shows tread making a grist walk meringue its shortfalls churn lavender seeking constricted outputs wherever toxic peril returns to the tablespoon mechanic thinning his impetigo cufflink before the signature premise foretells a transit separation that plated its tin pan axiom when a volcano getting sticky turned rock to breath garment addled the metastatic past where the missing seascape became an isolate outrage handed one vantage transit wigwam larva grated fine the equinox a tin simulacrum privately nautical while frenetic crosswind photos loom slow gallops churn lap wings hallucinogenic parka their logo welcome lifeboats cure their legacy brimstones steal bronzed glory typewriter militants ghost wherever straight words pocket enjoying clatter supplication enchantment no mezzanine sidestep set their drone to preferences luncheon still imposed before mustache broadcastings push migraine persuasion to the many the foodstuff not big repentance

Road Tripped

den massacres breathe contempt breaks above high tongues

the body proof unscrupulous

its drip	storefront music
the gift	a cliché pawned

opposite patrons

leaving in bridges

()

red clamor off the ointments rapt a resinous accrual attention seats

ever the finer

knowing imposed ancient acquisitions on the momentary

walling threats concha music

hearing silence

reverberating

()

disillusion grifters breeding dead envy

to

sideline pinched curtails while checkout the the stiffening intuition irregulars pasture

> used sounds record pair leaving grotto lava current hard

to bleaker feelings

pace tongues song the unrepeatable wax

fraying reverberations

a better somnolence

to roadside wingtips lost

A Roadside Distraction

1.

painters in name covens

spared the writer's grasp at both day and eyepiece

> stunners ecstatic to the last motorist

horn

demanded finding little

the beau pressed his looming play line

(jerk)

2.

discursive segue glow nonchalance the radiator curse

"Here's the 1939 landslide again"

transit erosion vagabond brittles blown

the stamp motel legged the fairground the daze ecstatic past wayside curtain lowered on bestial exchange and worm consortiums

grinding statesman a boar

З.

rump sonically debauched grated the forever baritone the moment stew arrested

double bride planned a topper offers that reached a success

through slowly taking whenever to its destination verdict

Touring the Side Life

among alley lieutenants insecticide tyranny sidewinds imprecations where a toned passageway

stripped notebook leisures past revenue justice to replication

animus brewery frontage grimly molding a dead footpath

boiled through a laxative lacing

possibly roasting latrines as tourism preconditions

a retread spokeswoman rejoicing

the bleat learned well

timekeeper dissuasions derailed in the gloried fingerprint scheme dodge a daydream eponym raw

compounded venue gangsters

into selling their climb chances

where temperament sheriffs leave

Stuck in Human Trafficking

deflation plastered ombudsman follow-ups

as thoroughfare sturgeon invigorated briar

flayed adjutants garbled past basilica jacks

not rooted in the motorboat

valence returns pituitary facings

turbulent between padding cottages sullen fellow, concrete protuberance

sly timetables the respite logarithm arrived

where the filtered make legacy babes turn castle

()

coned samosa threesomes report kangaroo monsoons ramped with monosyllables

northward salutations humored illuminati

rumor abduction gathered regulations implosion bandit terminus

casually semantic the code stationer

then expostulated that atlas fulcrums

eluded bland clients and humored bridging

()

neurosis junkies benefit theatres learning legacy collapse

a guildhall mechanism spotted lost pitchforks

where the backbone vesper behind an octopus mascara enhances a sonic wallflower

from shallow fastening to the railroad's thriller

milking the portly mandarins

Futures Pitched

1.

iced empire scenario the struggle over, the worthwhile praxis creaking easy

padded above the carry of its atonal keynote

curried grievance

withdrawals in

from dusk

the forgotten tableau fingered a vanishing

а

2.

before vinyl when bamboo antics on view

overshoot symmetry

the will of a patchwork foible

empty motifs

(undetected)

processing factual wingtips

moistened a weary reflux obscure planetarium hooves dead iceberg cavernous deliberation

moat wavering

as failed

3.

galloping stares pouncing finer glacier flip will cast out the pitch

pursue the theremin

breathless offshore unless headlong tide torn homeward

denotation hangings

lurch

lipsticks dispatch beauty for their strange apogee

4.

their multiphonic seeks bargained cement and cover reactionaries

adrift in departures and disparity sirens

(splatter in with patio dissolve)

future's weary lid the amplification

of the prophetess

another martyred fireball swaggers

delirious

into

darkness

The Crossing Line

a cross-handed intersectionist lampooned the cross-haired redlight a lurid interjection

spectacle reviews project torrid elision prefects

pronounce the horrifying belief branded as defection schedule

traffic attuned to a delayed fixation

()

nonstop coruscation makes a foreign statement

on soil

or rousted whereabouts

sneaking a low shiv in naked heat

impatient for the next lather foaming

low-toned striations

to popping tension

stationed a derision

()

words landed to splatter felt vexation bites

to dissect merchants of bleak aplomb

gathered to stage a cross-hearted menage

where the eyes of passion fail to meet

no blind ignition allowed to start a sight

or a battle of sneak interjections

Reception at the Coastal Remnant

fallow the moribund halter calling gamut victuals fallen to portrait loom conjectural fragments left questing oral counterparts to group soliloguy compost headings faltering close chance vandals wallow in salt bins shaker loose to its aching encore schematic telegram fodder clenched ingenuous leather treaties turned triangle wrenching soccer weddings ruin blanched fiasco treaties run past vital rumination guadrants turning escarpment mottoes runic as the tunes blazed light sharply past melody's era fragmenting ear to a vestige nearer than its clipping bears to current striation plasma spreading mnemonic transfer badges among those calling for great shores to bring gallows threaders to mend fencing casualties that murmur nightly plastic sequins whisper tight as lips will seal the fish hatcheries where hidden secretions follow clued ensemble currents to shallow fences that left to wade the fulcrum level badgered to emission treading form while content to decline hammock seating truculent restoration banners swell to optimum configuration masks leaking plaster through mastic leverage near augmented projections looping vintage accumulation brackets within steep granary bludgeons made to forfeit a plural entourage with concealed intent toward the making of a naked transfer that would bleed the heart of an artichoke free of any pistachio climate freezers

or truculent vapidity wipers battering nuisance cake no ambulatory manners lacking the grit of circumference sheds dotting the landscape ruins left smoking corn silk memoirs with toxic additives testing the measure of a clenched breath held longer than the chart can swallow

Flavoring the Day

turmeric frenzy no python simulation renewal attacked border phantoms

beyond their patrol a legend of dead metaphor

not a chance

for an aleatoric slither easing a spice counter through customs

inanimate pancakes battered to a shelter

kitchen taste runs across garlic lines

a cultural transit imbued

Cradling Too Grave

natal retirement before gram habitats whittle the fetal parka

> for easing dreamers after aching burlesque that

sudden confluence the slim iconoclast

grated parlance

in frenetic grams riding a fingermark surfboard

*

the thoughtful pathfinder their intrepid lumens boiled

a gripping minder the deluxe debate imposed blown ink

leftward distention an inscription berating passing worn roads

under shuffled

*

mileage

bearded realtors will reprise dimmer taking

among

ingenues

whose nonchalance elicits perfumed reminders gone

palpitating endearment

Mirroring the Current Reflection

the cove tides a slow dimension

the parallel time gliding the currents aligned slowly to flow

while covens grip embalming rudders

*

no salt wave needs its soaking redemption

transfiguration parallels the line

curving low before the treacherous palms

*

cresting seeks its own plasma shelf for dining

a waving tidal current turned recurrent twice

as one retracing the line curses at each reflection

*

entanglements plunder the raging sun

Corval Illumination

light shedding its luminous tears in circular threading at the peak of the breeze stairwell headings will bring facile irritation seeds to grim fruition on a roaring cant shared octagonal stiletto dreams begotten under the tuning sun before a chordal forklift cried pyrrhic dicta in amenity sutures grounds shifting under coffee water gorges the amulet before patio lost to reference games reduced leaks to divot pleasure lumbering soggy grain packaging burrows large as furriers on launch or under-rehearsed to play leather traction party victims on parole from county grades left marking slotted ambiguities for vain filtration depths charged fully to ensue backing for lost weather baskets and other roles left unfilled or topped against a dull vapor poring through a circus of lonely crows to a murder

Feeding One Spirit

freezer bag marauders encircling their whirling focal point turn vocal when

	the dumpster
reporter	declares

possession

ecological rerun demons return to schedule the beacon crawl

for

mendicant packets

begging the weight of deliverance

as change pocket or other wise

a dollar tactic more suited

to reaching for more

or less

distance

to close the touch

Marching Back the Clock

new lunge vessels the denomination their tipster finds glimpsing a vest bidder

dead veranda beveled the momentary clergyman thrust regardless of the sham elastic

reporting melody's decade past

their plateaus posing downturn memorials

lecturing thoughtful disregard

dead luggage relayed slipping noumena

*

historic legislation hunters lecturing of campground eternity stage a slow grounding

> among the bargaining scourge embankments lash slowly grins monolithic

> > harbor parlance unstocked

trusting to dotage readers uttered rectangular pearls skillful replication attuned against remedial brimstone lozenges deleted doorsteps perpetrator fretting claves volcano sperm bent faded armor signboards tipped the drenched romantic

while elastic lodging hooked them

the dinner a dry disregard

rendered

radio marches nominal

Opening the Night

mischief work every leg slow grinding

albacore statesman crystallized random portage constables

rephrased the simulacrum

a discursive vesicle other flannels glinting rose sent hollow vows

a rôtisserie poetry sendup

before dimmer encroachment surfaced

()

the star's imposed lacks finished stencil methodology a dead-handed laugh

no textbook rogue encased

social adverb stoking encased a somnolent funk:

"hard to rant acronyms killed among parlance"

it bruises portfolio linkage in a convenient disposal voice

(nonchalance cling)

()

similarity delicacies past hugging old displays fend with beating finesse

> a time heckler never listening drifted in

> > no lipstick no cartons

no emerald temptations

the debut illustrated

landmark rage

the numbered cartons heave

scabbard panoramas linear pudding deaths

in the green room

a delivering milkmaid dazzles impatience raw

Career Change of the Ancient Mariner

suicide tests a theoretical factory torrent line quadrant measures

a lower mystic unplugged the nodes

the balcony mix whispered albatross fixation distancing murmur denials

airwave moguls served phylum remnants

a millennial best for zoot fabric handkerchiefs frightened

cold people who need theoretical mallets

many passions while fertile compendium points tuned stentorian

dash flagellants to the granite welting

cattle wander frightened the pocket merchants gone artful

their haze ravishing the plural dissent

Return of the Wild Ones

1.

disrepair toothpaste targeted hinterlands debt guru distention

burlesque lowered them

silence left the center enabled a fingermark meritocracy

their pucker talks the step into typical sausage aggression

wet entreaties edify when bartered

2.

a confused coven gone to bustle turd formality defers its boater campaign

to the distillery while gloried returns

hector thirsty errata

a sentient broomstick never an endearment

З.

radar fingerprint ravenous udder volcano grows firearm experience admonished commands tangle

lunch a sloe fizz ginned up a gloried peccadillo pressed the buff

(savory hush)

experienced motorcycle reversing

its fingermark burn their deluxe plumage departing

leaves one green tortilla always blown cement

Invasion Forcing

semen otter ventricles oscillate at terminals of entry

no less entreating the cost of the closely bound

libido actors named for sordid closets

a foraging entity caught fondling in the wood

escapes the badge of drudgery

*

*

enhancement tablets uttered the sputtering mores to let their nodes

> revel in their hunger pattern never less than a lanyard grip

away from the samba propelling damage of baggage cart memoirs so dear envoy

patterns repellent to those coming to grip insurgent

> molecule vectors guide armada heaps prone to centuries

> > of envy

that hasten the taste of their lurid grip

a coarse diversion retained its rippling fuselage pretension hurried

to the blotter

incidental pace

erasing

the hot rocket paunch displayed cluster lust and raunch together slipping

past the lace of a loose and shimmering

enmity

Guerilla Tactic

lemur decimation sutra where a gaping instance applied

dilatory involution taper better less than unmentioned

estimates

precede domination

when playing the role of spare parts

dominion curls the ears of the chant hearing

wet echoes aching across a tongue

and breath an instant's gasp beat for time cycle

> no camel raga drone can dare to afford

At the Debutante Bawl

dividend fathom reprint rendered a terrace to enter boldly embargo epistemological superstar receding

reprisal unpaid

the paranoiac distrust no portrait can retouch or fathom their prodigy

a lachrymose mannequin lost its abdominal disruptions

cortical portmanteau transforming the primordial

coiled

platelets flail

consume frustration wafers

post-mortem valence assured their stopwatch in storage intervene

> preparing the foreground deviant through its horizon soiree

Libidinal Ticketing

id police posing stylish anonymity suits

askance when embryo sockets evade

red warnings encircling apnea research legions brutally adored camper

no pocket warning sealed

a serial encampment availed at first glance

weathered the circular its release incumbent

pockets trapezoidal in return

offer made as offering to play higher circular debate

(irreverent offspring)

()

camel suture breathes its unlidded mastery invasive nonsense duty call desire fillers libidinal a pocket rocketing

amperage mythology booty caller hopes on

a hop missed but in rhythm

> (method) no hit

> > however, popular

laxative bandits preach no predication murmur

more likely punching the scored card

Inside the Rubble Room

literal escarole pudding escaped from the pit to fondue

the wedding skeptical to guests leaking mileage

no fumes left to gather

*

while hunting their crude dismay

repels every ampersand cluster in reach

no lesson goes

*

untaught for polish or scent

a shortage montage scholar deficits

р			е
Ι	to		I
u		of	0
n	the		n
g		their	g
е	pit		а
		own	t
			i
			0

no rumors remark

the precipice awakes

+

n

the dawn of a burning cluster from a rogue dish gone turmeric interim fawning receptacle

> in clatter the dust waits the fuzz of its rotation call no terminal address at point

autumn hedges the inn	the rubble room a point to cleave a template saga
	a tempiate saya
а	
place	
	circumstantial
no	fortuity
fire	beckons

like

the present

Hosting from the Audience

talk radio raves against a papal simulacrum

no bull intended

at the cattle orifice lowing the limbo record

referenda suffrage below intent

no blue orchid streaming laser lines

a spectacle of faith caught loafing with camera fish

hinting slyly udder cleavage styled

under the camera waving dreams below passage

aching bent over

black stocking net

fish

breath leering

the vicarious dream of a neutered pantomime

Social Standing

a mortal coil strikes no serpentine posture replicable maneuver to foil attacked blatant downscaling

> a horizon breach its tight squeeze rubbing over soil

caught in reverie's dim brocade

*

velvet leper suit attire for a molar decay as sediment

or sentiment

replayed

a fact of last writhing

hands outstretched

the boil a knowing smirk a stance before the strike

attempting

*

to evade

the reach

a land outstretched

the smirk of rescue

saving	detached
no	form
grace	notes

at the rest / stops between

posture

strikes

Achievement Crowning

caliper tribunals the meat-centered domiciles scathe a fast rebuke

*

lampoon the hollow-legged victory

*

when nominal classics greet their grimly-scented foothold

their slow calibers trail behind blood-thirsty legend creatures

past vigilante points of entry blockaded to lock the raving in a port of their own control

*

militant and slim delusions glide spectral past their grim retrofit panels

reproach the last errata no seatbelt worn to cover the blast from the ravenous timing

*

home dreams an empty retinue

Fiddling the Empire

runic warden attuning to the desert fog ellipse

omitted the sullen vector

a swollen tunic suddenly turns

to its hectic relay the soundburst

disrobed

geothermal modem passions before cholesterol explosions

burning hectic pleasure calls worse than its disrobing eclipsed bearing

glyph reduction technique

rubbing against rock a message dulling a sign signified silence

when the sector yearning cobra passion

struck

а	deal
replay	sounds
to	shake

a sonic measure stoned implosion protests an erosion growing wider

than the surfeit charged

Temptation Deadbeats

at the last cultural hollow the divorce of collision motive from a left-wing counter vaunt handed the ambiguity gone to rupture fairway cactus

as glazed flamenco demons toned their occlusion constables a brickading clockwork grenade lost its wherever massage while its password vitamin delayed monument yearnings

the faded eyeballs encased their phone-in simulacrum

fedora plumage toned to low under their nominal radish elision missing two handbags three dots and one pastel snapper

a dingo tempest plated to track their ebony figments required stoking before thorough bromide; subterranean maladjustment meant a lowered curve runner speedboat pillage distension

certified thumbtack renunciations react to the posh cowl peepshow

Gulf of the Purple Enigma

1.

digital glimmer transposed a distant night at an edge:

go to a nowhere corner to search its new place

where bridge trolls will sing blood

shanks shrieks tear-soaked screams bones

a transparent rafter

in the alligator breezeway

grunt rehearsal

broken reptile spells meaning beatitude feces

where the water meets its danger

2.

a target flood abdominal tourniquet implied fathom battle nuclear deadlock dweller in dreads no less no furthermore tugged a boat decree south

> the boardwalk runs the glimmering edge of a night bicoastal liniment grudge

> > inherent

blood explored

chained rehearsal

3.

tourniquet stems in memory's heated glare warm the flower tide

reptilian garden hose sprays a nominal fury transposed boardwalk leisure

a latex lament a tournament lost to competition

the gear

ever shifting

its reddening darkens blue tide

Under Watch in the Skillet

paranoid cooking oil increases margins of largesse

an apprehension wound serpentine coils to enduring

scales that long for a lubricated kid

to goat or stew sheepishly, an attribute

enjoyed over cold blue heat

all the wool pulled into water

*

invisible threats suggest voices coiled still but tense in the window, ready

to boycott displacement envy

withering just a slither away

a quick strike along the paned ledge

toning down the burner number

every dial a whisper

too loud

or

prelude to a hiss

from distant rooms that release the scream

Swine for Dinner

a grim pâté tilted the favored curry clatter left floored clutter

in a state mapped schlock innards

the cattle barren denatured a crackdown

serviced example the feed

the beef is where the heart

clicks the slowing encumbrance

()

dinner call a cannibal mapping late sleep

> begets an umbrage

classic unto itself a *sui* generic calling the hogs to feed them

as only the apple-mouthed can do

On Epstein's Island

thirsty sunburns planet loaves embalmed forever numb the spawn

momentarily

disinfectant imbroglio notches cheerleaders rigs waddled matters

basting in the aristocracy collar

glugging bashes where narrowed

earmark a psychedelic verve pageant

oscillating

wealthy linens with profound assemblages or its underdeveloped caloric permanence

ontological crotch pay liquidity fades beyond climbing on the pillow

> envies hovered to dawn where lyricists closed

Team Worked

slim custodian panthers hector the tentacle partnership

from slow to linear

> when a thanks rotisserie embeds straight shaking of the mariposa wrangle

the grim uranium threesome's grit

substituted

quark snitches

in the soundtrack

parading

a chained raincoat

*

in his make

sunbeam cartographers slog through buff legislation broadcasters above the direct abstention normally substituted hoisting

to their poisoner

the pork guard ever the rupture mischief filtered the disease

markings fingered sequential flay lathered

to greenback painter

bottled finances nonstop left their dreadful interjection

*

the lacquer handbill

pinched a boundary

a recourse running to pod contribution tonnage dustcart uses binary maximum renewed invective motorway fiery faded in roars sulfur toward tenements

the shipped drift voyagers in vent structure

disposals upend the meandering catalyst maps

vacant travels to the forward tentacle snicker

gray

at the hector

protruding

partnership

Journey through the Keys

the fungal latitudes bring torpor to the outset of definition

pressing an offset return as process talking

*

stencil past declaimed future sheets in the reddening wind

an interim barracuda nail spiked against the breeze

a cast bandit acting out the script

*

a mimeo revulsion inked the pencilled air through a life of dog years

pitted for the next byte

Delivering the Guarded Answers

the caddy of speedboats among voyeurs slipping ashore disposes heritage

to the unmentioned

posing		pasted
darling	chaperone shipped	delays

to its vacant settlers

breeder glamor the lingering rotisserie

outlines sunburns on the pedal vent

monolithic playgrounds clear posses guard the secondaries repel the compendium usher

*

colonnade enactment its predicate dawning

thirsty before caliper tread renunciation

maximum past cackling

the meritocracy breathes cement

revolt prides quaking peasants grasped will past palpitation

the scourge clipped

toward

reassessments forking

the lash

airlift history drifts past magnet predictions granite doormats

where incisors pull the mutilation lumens grimly before withdrawal

*

fortnight relapse learned recognition confused legislation

menagerie reporter

encased the robots

in predicates artfully worn

as a vesicle on seatbelts

to motorway moves

+

deaf to speeds near steak custody lacking scented sambas

delinquents in a beauty hood pressed scavenging sessions

past

advertising patois

the work finesse sweeps vaunted despite a forked

circumstance

raising

honed usages

shown promptly under explication

No Room at the In

fretting pineal the flume hotel transit disposed its torpor militia

breaking a somnolent rumor from its disport habitat a worn boomerang vocalist caught the horned legions

reversing the bearskin to ghost their venom pageants declines frontage under the madwoman habitat

the next dreamer temples a sentient breath precision simmer elicits a resuscitator tonic

replication lowered its climb ladder its stain fin sentenced to bromide

Back in the Back Alley Again

a burr voice gaffes before turbo numbed the palette splattered brighter thesaurus vacant work

ampules tired raw rationalists caught fending off raffle talk encouraged the locution play

grating as cracks encase a retrofit pudding missing fallacious heating on feel

a defiant management factotum the visible simulacrum recumbent again a fireball hazard ripped shelters

replication when torpor looking forwards a dimmer sinkhole glimpsing a fertilizer conundrum sprocket

the wet hesitation painter wanted behemoth incendiaries unsprung

neighborhood chokers brim over dice

Socially Transmitted Unease

anti-bacterial mission goes viral

*

at the sunset lounge the plants decayed the bent of the memory questers

lost

in a sea of missing legends gone urban

or fading to oral

*

bug fashions breed pursuit for conduit tensions canker levity patches

suite as dead ears burn grim resignation tents inferred

sentient venting

gender passage

inclined release deferral pent up and down the lateral wagon

*

trained to circle self-reflexive as one height bumbling gently toward levity referrals paid like old debts smell the dead fish rotting

bottom to gunwale

as fashion would have it (or not) when its pretension spread

Gone Psychic

subgum illusion tracer no courier tilled the basin mix nor

a stilled hypotenuse riding the retro crux in style

the rains crane wet-necked cribagge sticks

reek aplomb regaining its nether post new vision declared

a subliminal envy curtain

curtailed

happenstance remission

hinting at raincoat exposure and rosary factory outlets lovebeads canned

ova buttoned

loose origin persuasion pineal from a vacant forehead

erasing past futures for one present

Beholding the Spin of the Beholder

a monetary caligram encouraged random electron breeds not to umber

a blockaded legation breathes emanation garlands toward eyepiece commotion

a roue in designer turban would shock any cardinal

(grimly hallucinogenic brimstone wills hologrammatic swallowers)

thoughtful pixel illustrated rupture pathway bending a metamorphosis encore

turntable lobotomy timing natal password seedbeds

umbrage workdays imposed cadence taboos encased rivet disclosure

> the northward loco berating mustard pulsing

(immediate facial)

the faded noumena cadenza

ferments a revenue play

its hot curtain missing the casted sycophant

Strobing the Nostalgia Light

decimated tympani crashes a looming revelation transforming the parade of thinking nights

carapace hopes skeleton buttons horizon carousel

overtures distrust enclosure odds

banter tense the storied clips ring walled cans or vigorous

*

tinting

unsettled pronouncements

would peal panatela to walled vignette rings limber through the fixture

sawtooth rumors iceberg the panacea factor

cufflink declarations shred pretenders port rail barkers call unsealed their sunset buttons limp verbatim

*

denied chart stamping suburban zoning buttons rapture the plating reply

glances yearn the demon heat from dance

Nodding a Then to the Now

his long story milks grim herb their supplier lines rap in flow regardless how tempos make kind cushion spread imposed

> a ravenous tableau the meteorite craniums lit topics edging commotion

before embarking on a stuporous donation

no matter where the pieces

()

embryonic transfer thicketing noon striations shoddy elocution

missing rupture capitols bloodshot grows sepulchral

their legacy's aftertaste derails motto bandanas a repentance emerging

never the curtain militias

()

a sleepwalker bristles with hisses in the slow moon burnish emerging in hunger but not at seashore a subterranean lifer

past the derision garments

failed anagram dreamers nadir a shaded rotisserie thrust

Darkening the Storm

a prescient spat filched deeper steel splatter-fingered

> no bags roaming reverb curdled militia culpas chiming mists

> > of dead spewing rudiment fillings

no definition more swollen

()

violin pinning the grimaces panic

> against nostalgic vagaries the seepage invasion delusion colors granaries chronically

> > darkened with treble curls

smoke pillars wandering

cavernous shadows

torment rotored and squeezed

()

no gape whip surging below

71

a launch brightens modest feats

frothing known and devious predictions

mustard animus mutilation deviation predicates inking a portfolio ergonomic will placates guerrilla replicates bluffing

from nude admixture sacs

()

a shake vantage rendered the gall of a slow assemblage

a stripper glasshouses it

the revolt red graphic

turns jacklight forewarned driven umber

inhabits the doctrine

Purpled Oyster Cult

headband limericks fizzle price elation detonates backward lending icon decongestants

the pretexts

radar portal

its barkers call

verbatim divinities

limping clippers bribe no washbowl

waterfall engineering captions concealed their adapter when stay-at-home bias foreground

overworked pandemic form

in strained arrears baffling incarnations intervene

their shattering artifact paper seeding a bold thorax coiled past their deliberation starlet

hatching

green brick no transforming tentacle the paragon of thistle

> reporting stool hordes a skewer buyer would crater a hornet fodder

in suburban odyssey violations primordial thirst secures

pearl revenge unsettled

Payback in the Works

packaging as market bait the gondola switched a rife glade's lively blades rowing them away from a pomegranate vacuum thrust among the blockage pills left to filter the coma gray as though roaming impertinence didn't wilt before lions tore the colosseum to rapture the heavenly void capsules on sale forays ventured affable in a laughable remix tantra no fixable position left unturned or tuned to low vibrato brackets in the carry-on seizure pouch aligned the deathly software carpet no match for the reply to optimal regeneration totem requests for privileged infection prior fillers mount to story board the suspected plenary crawl toward scrotal insignia pablum breached where mounting flourish stalls the backward crawlspace remedies burning socket mantras measured use of cynical bursts jangling medicinal ganglia rifts left charged for empty retribution

Orchestra Strike

circumflex rubato passage detector homecoming lost

surface whirl tingling a collapse in shards

the moon leveling its conception

where fins vex the song as distant lapse

> a watered score unfolds the empty clamors that clambered the wry dulcimer

()

measures thrive where the rabid left predicted the shattered note replayed

orchestral view

complaints untracked

a water path

liminal mausoleum curves

moribund central too slow

to canto a glue frisk buzzer

denture frescoes gawk a yes-man nuptial darkening trilogies

()

implants delicatessen reefer passing rendered grapefruit weary

creeping inscription servings plated the reiteration bushels outputs vacant taster squads

> unleashed troubadour legions at southern mutant cavalcade straining a purity the anointed

cleft across crawler shaft vest

hearse crashing visionary foods motivation root

crusty fastener bombast

plaid ration lost offering yeast replication

tarpaulin rumors melon to elastic

()

alienation mixer threatening mental depletion trick

planing umber before namesakes

calypso pythons yawn combative serpentine flint the suspense looming

veiled in the praxis sharks danger above the memento slag

darkening

an impaled libretto varnished canticle finalists

The New Traditionalists

some path

the anachronism restoring its mustard jazz replication

to (re)coup

their security beverage convenient temptations face enjoyable rhythms

(re)cap

moldy breath mavens the dromedary hollow remembers deadlines

tourism downsizing to all the missing sheriffs

retrofit drill possums devised sanity radar

lotion phrase overcoming caddy breath

plumage bent material stunners

no rage relaxation encampment

objective: money bristles car trim a current routine their cadence no sealant

in retrospective cataract argots

Driven Home by the Concert

linear loan forced traps a fashion tract enameled

new irrigation rollers past any sextants to cartilage incumbent

insinuations

a burnt symphony connects worn dissonance a faded loop of melody trousers

first sounds resound different canyons smoky

cantatas roving undone straining where the frenzy gives operetta barging

the hard strategy

daylight revenge

a sudden wisdom

no translucence boogie from the curvature scanners

the morphine tenant dumps a consonance freak

hostage

against the listeners present

and set the tumult from their balding tympanist inanimate

centrifugal camphor at histories for the next titanium swizzle the sending metronomes faded other polyrhythms

> imploding wisdom a riff in crescendos lost the spin-off veneer

> > sizzling reprisal listeners

never a marginal key past traction hemming the sky screen

overindulge clavichords while a wider ear diluted innuendo

Spark of Desire Gone South

the fingernail manner doubles past blistered links for turn-ons and raucous creation a volt feast without uses

then retracts

the matinee hospital inherent episode loaves plasticine to firebrick in past

wearing out learned water

the topcoat passage crossed a central nightie depending on the backcloth

*

inherent to the foreground creeper

theatrical silks bulled the roadblock daredevil climbing

to grater expectorant

a sombrero of itself

Donne and Gone

rudder claims a boundary shored before tidings land

a reversed course

forwards the precursor ending

the salad entourage eats lifeboat footage

no matter the enclave

infamous for its old ceremonial coring the frontal

before its lowing approach

no island is entire outside the water

*

as wet definition iconic tugboat sculpture words against the tide

and its current

diffusion

a drift

The End of an Affair Revived

sycophantic firebreak no leg glinting nautical preliminaries

low silk after the rendezvous broadsides reprise a last gasket

ravenous lilac bluff distention a natal firestorm

> the blown nadir bleached gloried plumage

> > *

recumbent ivory conjurer plated a well-bent simulacrum

discharging the candelabra shepherdess encased a slow visionary bearing new lint

nook ale somnolent seductions midnight precipice clatter vocal snatched in transit

a raw-handed sequel rung low from one rebuke

heats every futon in the shade

*

replica tongue resuscitator learns the swollen vocal legends reaches fork matter the surface rogue riding vocal disorder before magical currency shattered definition

Fixing a Borrowed Habit

simulacrum addict fixing with a borrowed paradigm

amphitheater closing the latest string of artifacts

hung

a plaster closing attuned to past fortune no future

> in opposing the brief that ripped the current from the pit of wet nostalgia

repellent vector a slide where fossils of the evening gather postures for similar dismay

in veritas a show of chaos exposers dissembled

for a lather gathering

foreclosed

to join the programmed rhetoric

in its recovery

Getting Smugged

goad holders need inclement plumage lowered a

casual whirling vertigo

clatters

thrashing merger transits

crackling the copper detritus heater verge no good forge blotter

reposes breeze metronome crude where simulacrum amplifiers negate breath whisks crowded in seepage

frank

every chaplain statue

low sunburn thugs will refit palpitating grinder courtesy remedial off-drinkers ration

value relay the hidden measure glimmering

deleterious rapture

cantos purse tumid doorstop delirium

almost cut gripping its own saturation

Viewing Widely

a food turban flaunting retinal implication stirs rudening

renown, a reputation

as skewered and skewed under chance or

any

sentient chandelier

an inquiry into delirium as praxis modem assured compliant

seating animus sated

from behind throttle

full gasket a bore to listen to quenched

the worst amity pittance ascribed

to glory factoid or primal rumor

eyes told to head at rest a barrier implication, pronoun receding astonishment

a reputation for

tectonic dimension

when the cornucopian gaze unfolds

again, the uproar

Ending Melody

the pole ensemble parted as past all uses implicit in their addition each its myriad partnership palette

nightstick moves retract their chaotic molesters for takeaways

> slow climbing slotted hierarchical giving impulses

illustrate the pastel a climbing graphic nestles to volt the implicit music

*

a worrier cassette shakes up the doorstops of inherent lapse

> all fax toast tip-offs learned formulation impresses the expletive rackets knocking expertise

> > a shadowed dissonance deleted devastation turnovers

At the End of the End of Days

pyrrhic lumber left burning sutures shifting for the lonely casing new murder charged in stairwell irritation brackets wilt insignia leaks the roaring remedies measured pine capsules for somatic coffee brackets or for columnar socket blades where reactor seekers last charged disfigured tantra tracking in retreat buried the remedies backward as the corporeal circus games dull massages filter grim retribution basket threading reduced pleasure to a fixable granite platelet flourish no weather security packaging socket banter breached arrears extreme position dismembered remnant amenity glimmer blades tore through the loose coma pouch luminous grades suspected traction impaneled scrotal parlor forays as privileged inflation disasters fruition stalls reply nostalgia riffs mount a laughable tenth catalogue with harried impertinence rehearsed a long and clever compendia rapt

After Closing Time

a tonality smooch fibers its lavish fusspot

fawns the angular raise

a beauty tuning the forehead

elastic temptations uttered in a motorway second

with laughing ugly

disposition borrowed a livid half-life

boardwalk heartbreak

where readers surrender the sequential alongside a pituitary brass heritage

lacking bassoons dangles pinions

threadbare mobsters delayed a check-in refits near cartons

shipping assault declaimers

under a rink portent

where thickened partnership climbs lateral horizon the urgency abundant

didgeridoos fuss a thrashing whizz

under tailback

attracting a radio cougar where nunneries repatriate

condiment brass mantra clangers samovars decoy

> monolithic predicates to enjoy percussionist plateaus

> > momentary visionaries rendered their rooftop leaps

> > > genetic flux eagled profiting

> > > > then inebriated checkmate

Ending at the Beginning

1.

devastation dreamers handed strangers passing workloads saw forever solutions

flee their exorcism visitation workday

eyeball pepper every watercourse borne

2.

olfactory pythons blocked the brooding of why tomorrow

gnat mirages snatched in a tinge

overreach at demos

the coulds of a beatnik caddy predicated every resuscitator

turbine moochers recumbent misanthrope bylines

"nice curtains"

3.

the resemblance collector of tomorrow simulacrum punctuality

formula yearnings

drinker talk lying blubber monologue rhetoric before every weary boiled face

bleached venom

4.

vibrator packets back the creepy rapture revamp

relegate dimension nestling

"houses die"

reading gravel partners

signature the vacant homecoming

5.

a motorist turning portent into tumid transit

> throbbing negative sexes cash in the errata tablets while scathe settlers leak

> > derision

an insecticide soundtrack

6.

crown conditioner monuments to plumage derails

the professed panoramas

heavyweight clinched

long afternoon previews

tinted a novice finishing snorts

Keeping a Chance Last

other roadsides would see toes move the fodder groin casting garbled expertise

arterial dots slotted a padlocked pagoda

for nodal detonation

the ensemble schemata moves shanks as deterrents parted all

blistered grip of the enormous line inherently vertical

juxtaposition padlocked graphic lining

a three-wheeler hearse not through itself giving horizontal

> implicit thrush monitors pressed barmaid thugs to become prime leisure

> > (a liberator in *delicto*)

flagrante

through and about

acquisition impresario

layoffs

his toothpowder loyalists catch well in pabulum line shaft friends

insignia inaccuracies

*

vary precisely about to backfire impulses to blistered legends perish

scrotal gull in graphic paint twined nonstop casseroles

giving slow listeners

the polemic itself

padlocked against lotto shaker epics